Minutes

SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HOUSING POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

9 December 2010



Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Judith Cooper (Chairman), Peter Kemp (Vice-Chairman), John Major (Labour Lead), David Benson, Beulah East and Pat Jackson						
	Also present: Councillor Philip Corthorne and Councillor Wayne Bridges						
	LBH Officers Present: Neil Stubbings – Deputy Director ASCHH Danniel Kennedy – Service Manager, Performance and Intelligence Charles Francis – Democratic Services Officer						
28.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE OF ANY SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Agenda Item 1)						
	None.						
29.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)						
	None.						
30.	TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 NOVEMBER 2010 (Agenda Item 3)						
	Were agreed as a correct record subject to the amending the minutes to show Cllr East in attendance.						
31.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED IN PART I WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)						
	All items were considered in PART 1.						
32.	ADULT SOCIAL CARE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT 2009/10 (Agenda Item 5)						
	At the start of the meeting, the Chairman welcomed Councillor Philip Corthorne, Cabinet Member for Social Services, Health and Housing who had been invited to share his views on the Adult Social Care Performance Assessment 2009/10.						
	The Performance and Intelligence Manager introduced the report which						

provided the performance assessment judgement for adult social care services in 2009/10.

To provide the judgement, Adult Social Care services were assessed against 7 outcomes and the following grades were awarded:

- 1. Improved health and emotional well-being well
- 2. Improved quality of life well
- 3. Making a positive contribution well
- 4. Increased choice and control adequately
- 5. Freedom from discrimination or harassment well
- 6. Economic well-being well
- 7. Maintaining personal dignity and respect well

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) concluded that overall, adult social care services were performing well. This equated to a three out of four rating and showed improvement compared to the previous year.

Officers explained that the 'performing well rating' was an overall rating based on an assessment of numerous sources including: regular performance monitoring meetings between Adult Social Care, Health and Housing (ASCHH) senior management team, as well as consideration of inspection findings and associated improvement plans. Officers also said that monitoring returns submitted to the Department of Health and CQC were a key source of information about the performance, strategies and outcomes from adult social care.

CQC recognised that a number of significant improvements had been made to improve the lives of local people including:

- A clear vision for adult social care with strong political and corporate leadership.
- Improved partnership working through the Well-Being Board and a new Well-Being Strategy.
- An embedded single point of access, leading to highs levels of satisfaction and improvement
- Developing systems and processes to enable Transformation
- Extensive work to create efficiencies and ensure value for money.
- A good track record in budget management, managing performance, developing staff and clear plans for improvement.

CQC also acknowledged that ASCHH senior management team faced a number of challenges including:

- Continued work to improve the timeliness of assessments and care packages, increase the numbers of people receiving self directed support and increase support for carers.
- Putting in place alternatives to residential care for people with a learning disability where this is the most appropriate option
- Embedding new referral and assessment processes for adult social care
- To work with providers to develop the market to support transformation and reduce reliance on residential care.

 Further work to establish a user led organisation to support the transformation of adult social care and housing services

The Chairman offered her personal thanks to officers for a good report.

Councillor Corthorne explained that he was pleased with the progress made in relation to Outcome seven, *maintaining personal dignity and respect* which also encompassed safeguarding. It was noted that an inhouse audit on Safeguarding was due to take place soon.

With respect to Self Directed Support, Cllr Corthorne explained there was a clear priority to improve performance and officers were working hard to achieve this goal. It was noted that customer engagement had a vital role to play in driving the transformation agenda forward.

The Cabinet Member thanked the Committee for its support and for the level of challenge it provided in its overview role. Officers were also thanked for their advice and support.

Members congratulated the Department on the improvements it had made since the last performance assessment.

Officers highlighted that they were currently working hard in a number of areas to improve the Authorities' overall score of three out of four. Work areas included:

- Further engagement with service users.
- Increasing choice and control within self directed support as part of the Transformation Agenda.
- Closer joint working between the Authority and the Voluntary sector as part of broader health and well-being agenda.
- Playing a leading role in West London procurement
- Telecare and telehealth, assisting people to live independently as long as possible and reducing admissions into residential care.
- Improving supported housing, helping people with mental health issues and the elderly live independently for longer

In concluding their remarks, the Committee were grateful that the report acknowledged the important role played by carers and commented on how Hillingdon LINK had evolved to become a very effective body. In relation to safeguarding, the Committee were pleased that safeguarding children was mentioned and that the report bridged the divide between children and adult services.

Resolved -

- 1. That the significant improvements made since the last Care Quality Commission inspection report be noted.
- That in relation to Outcome 4 Increased Choice and Control officers be requested to provide the Committee with a list of
 comparator Boroughs.

The Democratic Services officer introduced the draft report and reviewed the written and witness evidence the Committee had received.

Following discussion the following points were noted:

- That the final report include a Chairman's Foreword and Closing Word
- New Recommendation 1: That the first recommendation read that telecare is beneficial and should be pursued in the future.
- Old Recommendation 1 That this recommendation be redrafted to read The Committee requests that good quality information and advice must be provided for families, carers and service users, working with health professionals to enable them to understand their assistive technology / telecare options to assist them to make informed choices (to address their needs)
- Recommendation 7: That this be re-drafted to read: The Committee recommends that telecare be provided free of charge for a limited period (no longer than 6 weeks) after hospital discharge as part of the re-ablement project to provide assistance. (We feel that) Early exposure to assistive technology will help increase client confidence in the service and encourage further uptake in the service.
- That the final report incorporate further information about the charging policies of other Local Authorities and the respective rational for this.
- That the section of the report entitled Areas for Development on agenda page 15 - Performance Indicators - That further comments be incorporated on the implications of maintenance guarantees, product reliability and monitoring and also best value arising from the procurement process.
- That Tables 1, 2 and 3 on pages 24 and 25 of the report be developed further and for an appendix to be included providing further information on how these figures were calculated.
- For officers to clarify whether the mobile response unit would be available 24/7 as mentioned at the top of page 24 of the report.
- That a further section be added discussing the cost implications of the Table *Home Carers on Call* on page 24 of the report.
- Old Recommendation 4 That a further recommendation be added to illustrate cost savings.
- That further information be added on the advantages of an inhouse option compared to out-sourcing the assistive technology service identifying the challenges facing the service, the present location of Careline and the impact this has on delivery.
- Current Recommendation 8 about in-house model That this recommendation incorporate comment on the importance of local knowledge, local response and providing users with confidence.
- That further information be incorporated on Tustall and comment on the viability of a free service.
- That further information be provided on choice, how this will work work.

That the current section on Finance be developed further highlighting how the service will be financed and how the upfront investment cost would be met. Resolved -That the report be amended for 27th January meeting incorporating the changes listed above. 1. That revised recommendations be circulated to the Committee in advance of 27th January 2011 meeting 2. That a revised draft report be considered at 27th January 2011 meetina. 3. That the final report be considered at 22nd February 2011 meeting. FORWARD PLAN (Agenda Item 7) 34. Members considered a condensed copy of the latest Forward Plan covering December 2010 to March 2011. Resolved -1. Cabinet Item 528 - Director of Public Health Annual Report 2009/10. It was noted that this item would not be considered at December Cabinet 2. Cabinet Item 510 - West London Home Energy Retrofit programme - It was noted that this item would not be considered at December Cabinet 3. Cabinet Item 468 - Direct Payments Policy - It was noted that this item would not be considered at December Cabinet. That Officers be requested to provide an update to the Committee when appropriate. 4. That an update on the Day Services Strategy be added as an agenda item to 27 January 2011 meeting. 35. **2010/11 WORK PROGRAMME** (Agenda Item 8) This is a standard item. Resolved -1. That the timetable of meetings and proposed work

- programme for 2010/11 be noted.
- 2. That the Assistive Technology amended draft report be considered at 27th January 2011 meeting.
- 3. That the Assistive Technology final report be considered at 22nd February 2011 meeting.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.15 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 556454. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.